


attachments is ATTORNEY PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION intended
only for the use of the individual or entity named herein. If you are not the intended recipient
or the employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately
notify Shavina Kumar Mukesh by reply e-mail and delete the original message and any
attachments or by calling (410) 370-4411. Thank you in advance for your cooperation. 
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From: Mark Blom
To: jsb@carneykelehan.com
Cc: Mavis Ellis
Subject: Fwd: [External] Case No.: C-13-CV-19-001201
Date: Thursday, December 12, 2019 5:45:05 PM
Attachments: Emergency Hearing Request.pdf

ATT00001.htm
Motion to Shorten Time.pdf
ATT00002.htm
Rule 1-351 cert.pdf
ATT00003.htm

Judy,
Please see below. 

Thanks, Mark

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Shavina Mukesh" <shavina@mukeshlaw.com>
To: "Mark Blom" <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>, "mavis.ellis@hcpss.org"
<mavis.ellis@hcpss.org>
Subject: [External] Case No.: C-13-CV-19-001201

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not
click links or open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

Dear Mr. Blom and Ms. Ellis: 

Without a response to Plaintiff Martin Dimitrov's Petition for Injunctive and
Other Relief Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, and no Entry of Appearance, in
an abundance of caution, I am sending to both of you a courtesy copy of the
attached 3 pleadings filed with the Court via MDEC a few moments ago. 

Sincerely, 

Mukesh Law Office, LLC
Shavina Kumar Mukesh, Esquire
10630 Little Patuxent Parkway
Suite 301
Columbia, Maryland 21044
Ph: (410) 370-4411

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE. The information contained in this e-mail message and any
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
To: Judy Bresler
Cc: Kathleen V. Hanks; Mavis Ellis; Kirsten Coombs; Sabina Taj; Chao Wu; Christina Delmont-Small; Jennifer Mallo;

Vicky Cutroneo; Michael Martirano
Subject: Re: [External] RE: Statement for December 17 Board Meeting
Date: Thursday, December 12, 2019 4:27:08 PM

 Mark 

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 12, 2019, at 4:20 PM, Judy Bresler <jsb@carneykelehan.com> wrote:

Thanks.  
 

From: Mark Blom [mailto:Mark_Blom@hcpss.org] 
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 3:17 PM
To: Judy Bresler; Kathleen V. Hanks; Mavis Ellis; Kirsten Coombs; Sabina Taj; Chao Wu;
Christina Delmont-Small; Jennifer Mallo; Vicky Cutroneo; Michael Martirano
Subject: RE: [External] RE: Statement for December 17 Board Meeting
 
A copy of the petition, served today, is attached.
 
From: Judy Bresler <jsb@carneykelehan.com> 
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 1:37 PM
To: Kathleen V. Hanks <Kathleen Hanks@hcpss.org>
Cc: Mark Blom <Mark Blom@hcpss.org>
Subject: [External] RE: Statement for December 17 Board Meeting
 

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not
click links or open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

 

 
Judy
 

From: Kathleen V. Hanks [mailto:Kathleen_Hanks@hcpss.org] 
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 12:25 PM
To: Judy Bresler
Subject: Fw: Statement for December 17 Board Meeting
 
FYI
 
Kathy Hanks



Administrator
Board of Education of Howard County
Phone:  410-313-7194
Fax:  410-313-6833

From: Kirsten Coombs <Kirsten_Coombs@hcpss.org>
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 12:18 PM
To: Kathleen V. Hanks <Kathleen_Hanks@hcpss.org>; Vicky Cutroneo
<Vicky_Cutroneo@hcpss.org>
Cc: Board Member's Email <restrictedboard@hcpss.org>; Michael Martirano
<Michael_Martirano@hcpss.org>; Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>; Karalee
Turner-Little <Karalee_TurnerLittle@hcpss.org>
Subject: Re: Statement for December 17 Board Meeting
 
This is the case number - C-13-CV-19-001201
http://casesearch.courts.state.md.us/casesearch/inquiryByCaseNum.jis
 
 
 
Regards,

Kirsten Coombs
Vice Chair
Howard County Board of Education
 
667-786-3867
 

From: Kathleen V. Hanks <Kathleen_Hanks@hcpss.org>
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 12:06 PM
To: Kirsten Coombs <Kirsten_Coombs@hcpss.org>; Vicky Cutroneo
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
 
Hello again,
 
I have spoken with Judy and no injunction has been filed at this time.
 
Kathy Hanks
Administrator
Board of Education of Howard County
Phone:  410-313-7194
Fax:  410-313-6833
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From: Kathleen V. Hanks
To: Board Member"s Email
Subject: CONFIDENTIAL: December 10 Closed Meeting Minutes are attached for your review
Date: Thursday, December 12, 2019 3:05:37 PM
Attachments: 12 10 2019 Confidential Closed Minutes for approval.docx

12 10 2019 Official Closed Minutes for approval.docx

Hi,

Paper copies of the official minutes will be at your place on the dais Tuesday.

Please contact me if you have any edits. Thank you!

Take care,

Kathy Hanks
Administrator
Board of Education of Howard County
Phone:  410-313-7194
Fax:  410-313-6833



Unapproved 

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE  

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF HOWARD COUNTY 

CLOSED MEETING 

December 10, 2019 

The Board of Education of Howard County met in closed session on Tuesday, December 10, 2019, at 

4:30 p.m., in the Board Planning Room of the Department of Education, 10910 Clarksville Pike, Ellicott 

City, MD 21042.  A motion was made in public in the Board Room by Ms. Coombs that the Board go 

into closed session pursuant to Section 3-305 of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland to discuss the Open Meetings Act Complaint 20-15; Personnel-An Individual Matter; 

Personnel-Ethics Panel Findings-Complaint #2-2019; Personnel-Ethics Panel Findings-Complaint #3-

2019; Personnel-Ethics Panel Findings-Complaint #4-2019; and Chesney, et al. vs Howard County Board 

of Education.  The motion was seconded by Mrs. Mallo and approved 5/0.  Persons present: Board 

members, Mavis Ellis, Chair; Kirsten A. Coombs, Vice Chair (left 7:30 p.m.); Vicky Cutroneo; Christina 

Delmont-Small (arrived at 4:43 p.m. after the vote to close); Jennifer Mallo; and Chao Wu, Ph.D. 

ITEMS CONSIDERED, ACTION TAKEN, AND RECORDED VOTES: 

Also present:  Michael J. Martirano, Ed.D., Superintendent (left at 5:25 and joined at 5:38 p.m.); Judith S. 

Bresler, Esq. and Patricia Ursprung of Carney, Kelehan, Bressler, Bennett, and Scherr, LLP (left at 5:25 

p.m.) Trudy Grantham, Executive Assistant for the Board of Education (joined 5:32 p.m. and left 5:38

p.m.) Mark Blom (joined 5:38 p.m.), Suzzanne W. Decker, Esq. and Sasha E. Hodge-Wren, Esq. of Miles

& Stockbridge (joined at 6:13 p.m.); and Kathleen Hanks, Administrator

1. To discuss with legal counsel the open meetings act and complaint filed with the open meetings

compliance board.

Board members provided information to legal counsel regarding the matter. Ms. Bresler and 

Ms. Ursprung gave legal advice. The Board had in-depth discussion, asked clarifying questions, and were 

in agreement on how to proceed. Counsel stated they would provide information to the Board, and the 

matter would be an agenda item on the next regularly scheduled Board meeting scheduled for Tuesday, 

December 17, 2019.  

2. To discuss employment related matters concerning an individual.

The Board discussed an individual’s employment and voted regarding employment. 

3. To address the Ethics Complaint #3-2019.

Mrs. Grantham reviewed the ethics complaint and the Ethics Panel recommendation. The Board discussed 

the complaint and voted on the matter. 

4. To address the Ethics Complaint #4-2019.

Ms. Ellis and Mrs. Mallo recused themselves and left the meeting at 5:36 p.m. 

Mrs. Grantham reviewed the ethics complaint and the Ethics Panel recommendation. The Board discussed 

the complaint and voted on the matter. 

Ms. Ellis returned at 5:38 p.m. Mrs. Mallo returned at 5:43 p.m. 

File: 12 10 2019 Official Closed Minutes for approval.docx



Official Closed Meeting Minutes  Page Two 

December 10, 2019 

 

Unapproved 

 

5. To address the Ethics Complaint #2-2019. 

 

Mr Blom reviewed the ethics complaint and the Ethics Panel recommendation. The Board discussed the 

complaint and voted on the matter. Board members requested staff to provide additional information for 

any future complaints.  

 

6. To consult with legal counsel regarding a pending lawsuit.  

 

The Board was provided an update of the lawsuit, received legal counsel, and voted on next steps. 

 

 

 

Adjourned: 8:24 p.m.   Submitted by:                                                                

       Mavis Ellis, Chair 

       Board of Education 

File: 12 10 2019 Official Closed Minutes for approval.docx







From: Vicky Cutroneo
To: Danielle Lueking; Mavis Ellis; Kirsten Coombs; Christina Delmont-Small; Sabina Taj; Chao Wu; Jennifer Mallo;

Michael Martirano
Cc: Karalee Turner-Little; Kathleen V. Hanks; Mark Blom
Subject: Re: [External] Preservation of BOE Central Office Recordings
Date: Friday, December 6, 2019 4:42:38 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Danielle and Mark,
I have notes of what transpired during the recess that I wrote up when I arrived home from the
meeting.  
Please advise.
Vicky Cutroneo
Howard County Board of Education

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Danielle Lueking <Danielle_Lueking@hcpss.org>
Sent: Friday, December 6, 2019 2:40:15 PM
To: Mavis Ellis <Mavis_Ellis@hcpss.org>; Kirsten Coombs <Kirsten_Coombs@hcpss.org>; Christina
Delmont-Small <Christina_Delmont-Small@hcpss.org>; Sabina Taj <Sabina_Taj@hcpss.org>; Chao
Wu <Chao_Wu@hcpss.org>; Vicky Cutroneo <Vicky_Cutroneo@hcpss.org>; Jennifer Mallo
<Jennifer_Mallo@hcpss.org>; Michael Martirano <Michael_Martirano@hcpss.org>
Cc: Karalee Turner-Little <Karalee_TurnerLittle@hcpss.org>; Kathleen V. Hanks
<Kathleen_Hanks@hcpss.org>; Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>
Subject: RE: [External] Preservation of BOE Central Office Recordings
 
Good afternoon,
 
As I know this went out right before the holiday last week, if you haven’t reached out already please
let me know by this coming Monday if you have any responsive records for the request below so
that I can determine the volume and how to obtain.
 
Thank you,
 
 
Danielle Lueking
Legislative and Legal Affairs Officer
Howard County Public School System
Danielle_Lueking@hcpss.org
410-313-6820
 

 
 
 
From: Danielle Lueking 
Sent: Wednesday, November 27, 2019 10:23 AM



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
 
Good morning,
 
I spoke with the requester on the MPIA below and we have clarified the request in the following
manner:
 
For the purposes of this request, he is particularly interested in records regarding what happened
during the initial recess of the Board following the failed motion related to polygons 132, 1132 and
2132 as well as the subsequent discussion between the Board Chair and Superintendent during a
later recess. Specific records/parameters include:

•         Video – seeking recordings of either Board members and/or the Superintendent
during the above recesses/discussions.
•         Communications – seeking emails/texts or other communications sent during the
timeframe of 6-10pm that evening, specifically from a Board member or the Superintendent
(can exclude external communications to the Board or Sup during that timeframe).
•         Handwritten notes – seeking notes made by Board members and/or the
Superintendent during the timeframe of 6-10pm that evening, specifically regarding
polygons 132, 1132, 2132 or the above recesses/discussions and the related vote.
 

I will work with our security staff regarding footage within the building if that exists. For
communications, I will conduct a search of @hcpss emails – if you have other communications you
sent during that timeframe related to HCPSS business please reach out next week so we can
determine the volume. Same for handwritten notes.
 
Thank you and I hope everyone has a nice holiday!
 
 
Danielle Lueking
Legislative and Legal Affairs Officer
Howard County Public School System
Danielle_Lueking@hcpss.org
410-313-6820
 

 
 
 
From: Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org> 



Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 8:12 AM
To: Mavis Ellis <Mavis_Ellis@hcpss.org>; Kirsten Coombs <Kirsten_Coombs@hcpss.org>; Christina
Delmont-Small <Christina Delmont-Small@hcpss.org>; Sabina Taj <Sabina_Taj@hcpss.org>; Chao
Wu <Chao Wu@hcpss.org>; Vicky Cutroneo <Vicky_Cutroneo@hcpss.org>; Jennifer Mallo
<Jennifer Mallo@hcpss.org>; Michael Martirano <Michael_Martirano@hcpss.org>
Cc: Karalee Turner-Little <Karalee TurnerLittle@hcpss.org>; Kathleen V. Hanks
<Kathleen Hanks@hcpss.org>; Danielle Lueking <Danielle_Lueking@hcpss.org>; Jahantab Siddiqui
<Jahantab Siddiqui@hcpss.org>; Brian W. Bassett <Brian_Bassett@hcpss.org>; Thomas McNeal
<Thomas McNeal@hcpss.org>
Subject: Fw: [External] Preservation of BOE Central Office Recordings
 
Please read the Public Information Act request below. Danielle will be following up with the
requestor to get greater clarity, and then with individuals as necessary to respond to the
request.
Mark
 

From: Ross Laidig <rlaidig@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 7:48 AM
To: Thomas McNeal <Thomas_McNeal@hcpss.org>; Cathleen Mascaro
<Cathleen_Mascaro@hcpss.org>; Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>; Kimberly Clare
<Kimberly_Clare@hcpss.org>; Danielle Lueking <Danielle_Lueking@hcpss.org>
Subject: [External] Preservation of BOE Central Office Recordings
 

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or open
attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
 
In accordance with the Maryland Public Information Act and the Maryland Open Meetings Act,
I am writing to formally request the Howard County Board of Education and any associated
employees, officers, agents and contractors identify, retain and preserve all records related to
interactions and/or discussions about school redistricting that took place outside of the public
meeting at the Central Office located at 10910 Clarksville Pike, Ellicott City, MD 21042 on
Thursday, November 21, 2019. This includes all handwritten, typed, electronic, audio
and video records and recordings made by, of, or about Board Members or the topic
of school redistricting that occurred outside of the public meeting between 6:00pm
Eastern Time and 10:00 pm Eastern Time.
 
These recordings include but are not limited to security footage and any other means
to record audio and/or video throughout the entire Central Office building, as well as
Board Member notes, emails, texts, social media app or website messages, or other
documentation regarding interactions and discussions that took place outside of the
public meeting room.
 
Further, in accordance with the Maryland Public Information Act and the Maryland



Open Meetings Act, I formally request that these records be provided to me.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Thank you,
 
 
Ross Laidig

rlaidig@gmail.com
 



From: Jennifer Mallo
To: jsb@carneykelehan.com
Subject: memorandum for the record
Date: Wednesday, December 4, 2019 6:15:00 PM
Attachments: Memorandum for the Record--Redistricting.docx

Ms. Bresler,
 

 

 
 
Regards,
Jennifer Mallo
 
Jennifer Swickard Mallo
Howard County Board of Education Member
410-355-7043 Direct
410-313-7194 Office



Memorandum for the Record—11/22/2019 

At the Board meeting of 11/21/2019, when the Board was voting on the school attendance areas, a 

motion (motion #4) failed.  Upon its failure, I motioned/called for a recess to allow me the opportunity 

to consider the impact of the vote failure.   

As had happened previously in the evening, when we were presented new information, I requested and 

was granted a 15 minute recess and review to consider new information.  During this earlier time, I took 

my paperwork of new information with me and retreated first to the Board Planning Room and then to a 

semi-private space at the desk of one of the Board’s administrative personnel to evaluate the 

information. 

With the failure of the vote, I knew that the cascading effects of the vote would be critically impactful to 

the whole structure of the redistricting plan. 

I picked up my packet of information and retreated into the Board Planning Room.  Ms. Coombs and Ms. 

Taj were already in the room.  Ms. Taj asked what happened not fully understanding the implications of 

the motion’s failure to pass.  I expressed my thinking that the whole elementary plan fell apart.  I 

expressed to both Coombs and Taj that I believed we would have to walk back all of West Columbia.  

Ms. Taj expressed that we could not possibly do that.  I informed her that I believed it was our only 

option in light of the vote failure.  I then set my packet of papers on the far end of the conference table.  

At some point, we were joined by Board Administrator Kathy Hanks. 

Ms. Taj remarked that only the prevailing side could reconsider the vote.  Directing her comments to 

Ms. Coombs, She pleaded with Ms. Coombs to reconsider the vote.   

Ms. Coombs responded that she was being bullied by the left and the right because she was the swing 

vote [referring, I believe, to the political spectrum].   

At that point, I left to return to the dais in order to get additional materials for my consideration.  As I 

left, Ms. Coombs was crying about the situation. 

When I returned to the Board Planning Room, the room was filled with Board members and the 

Superintendent entered expressing that an administrative session could only be called to explain the 

impact of the moves, but that Board members could not ask questions or deliberate.  

At that point, Chair Ellis informed the Superintendent that we were ready to return to the dais and the 

vote would be reconsidered.  Ms. Coombs expressed that she would be bringing the motion #4 up for 

reconsideration.  According to the time stamp on the video recording, the amount of time of the recess 

was less than four minutes. 

I remarked to the Deputy Superintendent that I would like to hear what the Superintendent might have 

said with regards to the impact, but at that point, the Board and Administration had begun to file into 

the Board Room. 

Chair Ellis reconvened the meeting and inadvertently called it an administrative session.  Ms. Coombs 

brought the motion back up for reconsideration while crying.  She also expressed that she did it because 

otherwise the whole plan fell apart.   

File: Memorandum for the Record--Redistricting.docx 



At some point later, the Superintendent asked to consult privately with Chair Ellis.  At that point, Chair 

Ellis corrected the record to reflect that an administrative session did not occur. 

At no point did a closed meeting occur.  Nor did the Board willfully circumvent the sunshine laws or 

Open Meetings Act. 

To my knowledge, the Board did not deliberate on the actions to be taken when we returned to public 

session, nor did Board members direct Ms. Coombs as to her actions.   

My sole intent in calling for the recess was to allow me the opportunity to evaluate the impact that 

might occur with this unexpected motion failure, given the opposite had occurred in the straw vote 3 

days earlier (Monday 11/18/19).   

File: Memorandum for the Record--Redistricting.docx 







 
Attorney-client privileged
 
Attached is a copy of a complaint that has been filed with the Open Meetings Compliance
Board concerning the Board's recess. 

 
 
Mark



Barbara Krupiarz 

barbkrup@verizon.net 
Date:  11/21/2019 

To: Open Meetings Compliance Board 

CC: HCPSS General Counsel 

Subject: Open Meeting Act complaint against the Howard County Board of Education 

Justification: 

The Howard County Board of Education met on November 21, 2019 to vote on redistricting motions at 

the close of a very contentious process that divided the community and even made national news.  

Upon the failure of two motions moving specific polygons, Board member Mallo “moved that the Board 

go into recess to consider the impacts of the failure of [those] motions.”  The community has been very 

involved in the process for public hearings, work sessions, and attendance at the meeting to vote on the 

decisions.  The Board did not mention any exception to the Open Meetings Act when they went into 

closed session to strong arm a Board member into changing her vote.  The Board came back from their 

private meeting during this open meeting and immediately voted to reconsider their previous vote.  The 

community did not get to hear the justifications for why one Board member, Coombs, changed her vote 

which made the motion pass.  Nor was there a justification of one of the exceptions to go into a closed 

meeting.  One Board member, Wu, asked if a vote was needed after Board member Mallo “moved to go 

into recess” and he was told no.   After the Board realized their violation of the Open Meetings Act, they 

took a recess and the Chair came back to state that she may have inadvertently stated that they went 

into closed meeting for administrative function, but they did not. 

The Open Meetings Act manual introduction states: 

The ability of the public, its representatives, and the media to attend, report on, and broadcast 

meetings of public bodies and to witness the phases of the deliberation, policy formation, and 

decision making of public bodies ensures the accountability of government to the citizens of the 

State. 

This “recess” to discuss the impacts of a vote is the worst kind of action by a public body, voting on a 

very public matter in an open session, and then hiding in secret because some members did not like the 

outcome, without the public being able to witness the deliberation.  The Board had a large number of 

work sessions to deliberate on these matters and to then secretly discuss a failed vote after months of 

public meetings is clearly a violation of the Open Meetings Act and a significant deterioration of the 

public trust. 

Sincerely, 

File: OMA_Krupiarz_11.21.19.docx





Howard County Public School System
10910 Clarksville Pike
Ellicott City, MD 21042
mavis_ellis@hcpss.org
 
Dear Ms. Ellis,
 
The Open Meetings Compliance Board (Compliance Board) has received the attached
complaint alleging violations of the Open Meetings Act by the Howard County Board of
Education.
 
Under §3-206 of the General Provisions Article of the Maryland Code, the Commission is to
file a written response to the open meetings allegations in the complaint within 30 days of its
receipt of this letter (December 23, 2019). The Compliance Board also requests that Ms.
Krupiarz be provided with a copy of your response. You can get his email address from this
email, on which he has been copied. The Compliance Board’s procedures are posted at
http://www.marylandattorneygeneral.gov/Pages/OpenGov/OpenMeetings/complaint.aspx.
 
Generally, the Compliance Board is able to issue an opinion within 30 days of its receipt of the
public body’s response and any supplemental papers. Thank you for your attention to this
matter. Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.
 
Janice Clark
Administrative Officer
Open Meetings Compliance Board
c/o Office of the Attorney General
Public Access Unit
410-576-7033
 

cc.  Complainant, Barbara Krupiarz, barbkrup@verizon.net
General Counsel, Mark Blum, mark_blom@hcpss.org
School Superintendent, Michael Martirano, Michael_martirano@hcpss.org, 
Administrator Kathleen Hanks, kathleen_hanks@hcpss.org

 
 
Confidentiality Notice: 
This e-mail, including any attachment(s), is intended for receipt and use by the intended addressee(s), and may contain confidential
and privileged information. If you are not an intended recipient of this e-mail, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized use or
distribution of this e-mail is strictly prohibited, and requested to delete this communication and its attachment(s) without making any
copies thereof and to contact the sender of this e-mail immediately. Nothing contained in the body and/or header of this e-mail is
intended as a signature or intended to bind the addressor or any person represented by the addressor to the terms of any agreement
that may be the subject of this e-mail or its attachment(s), except where such intent is expressly indicated.

 



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



Addendum 

The full redistricting process can be found here: 
https://www.hcpss.org/school-planning/boundary-review/process/ 

The Howard County Board of Education held public hearings on this redistricting process on the 

following dates: 

Tuesday, September 17, 7 p.m. 
Tuesday, September 24, 7 p.m. 
Thursday, September 26, 6 p.m. (NOTE: Time changed from 7 p.m.) 
Monday, October 7, 6 p.m. 
October 7 order of testimony 
Thursday, October 10, 6 p.m. 
Monday, October 14, 6 p.m. 
Tuesday, October 15, 6 p.m. 

The Howard County Board of Education held public work sessions on this redistricting process on the 

following dates: 

Thursday, October 17, 7 p.m 
Monday, October 28, 6:30 p.m. 
Wednesday, October 30, 6:30 p.m. 
Tuesday, November 5, 6:30 p.m. 
Thursday, November 7, 1 p.m. 
Tuesday, November 12, 4 p.m. 
Wednesday, November 13, 1 p.m. 
Thursday, November 14, 1 and 6:30 p.m. 
Monday, November 18, 1 and 6:30 p.m. 

During the November 21, 2019 public vote by the Board of Education, the following transpired at these 
approximate timestamps:  https://hcpsstv.new.swagit.com/videos/38244 

4:01 Board member Coombs responds to other Board members who were questioning the validity of 
the data “Would any of these changes make a difference in your vote? 
4:11 After one motion fails (3-4 vote) for moves of certain neighborhoods, Board member Mallo 
states “I move that we go into recess to consider the impacts of that last failed motion” 

Board member Taj “second” 
Board Chair Ellis “We will go into recess…” 
Board member Wu “Do we need a vote?” 
Board administrator Hanks and Board Chair Ellis “No” 

4:15  video resumes after an apparent motion to which Mallo states “Can I second that?” 
Coombs (crying) “because otherwise the whole plan falls apart” 
Board votes again on the failed motion and it passes (4-3) with Coombs changing her vote. 

Upon information and belief, Board members bullied Coombs into changing her vote.  The public had no 
ability to witness the deliberations which resulted in a change in whether a group of students who are 
currently walkers would be bused to a school farther away from their homes. 

File: OMA_Krupiarz_11.21.19.docx



From: Al Sprenger
To: Jennifer Mallo; BoE Email; Kirsten Coombs; Mavis Ellis; Chao Wu
Cc: Superintendent
Subject: [External] As School District Implements Busing Over Near-Unanimous Opposition, Chinese Immigrants See

Communism
Date: Sunday, November 24, 2019 10:30:10 AM

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Ref.:  
1.  https://dailycaller.com/2019/11/23/howard-school-busing-crying-socialism/
2.
 https://www.facebook.com/groups/2481593048731404/permalink/2545275365696505/

School Board Members,

This article/expose' certainly doesn't seem to bode well for Howard County.  I wouldn't
be surprised that a class action lawsuit from the parents doesn't appear in your near-
future.  The board is getting national attention from this for all of the WRONG
reasons.

From the article:
1.  "After one vote failed, members went into a back room, and when they came
out, one of the members who voted “no” was crying. They did a do-over and
she changed her vote."  Are you kidding me?  You brow beat/intimidated a member
to change her vote?  Yep, I see parental legal action in your future.  I saw this on the
web site:  "Wednesday, December 12, 4 p.m. – Work Session: Bullying, Cyberbullyng,
and Harassment Report"....I'm guessing Ms. Mallo missed this meeting based on her
behavior.

2.  "Board member Jennifer Mallo lectured to constituents who voiced
displeasure, saying it was a “privilege” that they got to witness the meeting,
admonishing them not criticize her on social media, and complaining about her
salary."  Good Lord, you've got to be kidding me?  Ms. Mallo certainly needs to start
the "apology process" to parents.

3.  "Immigrants from China and the former Soviet Union said that what they
were witnessing reminded them of the totalitarian regimes where they grew
up."  I think this sums it up real well.

4.  "A Howard County, Maryland, school board voted Thursday to implement a busing
initiative opposed by the vast majority of the public."  Certainly doesn't sound like the
board is connected to the parents/community.

5.  "Board member Kirsten Coombs voted “no” after board member Jennifer Mallo
motioned to move a swath of children out of their schools to try to balance poverty
rates. It failed 4-3, and people clapped. “I move that we go into recess to consider
the impact of the failure of that last motion,” Mallo said.



Coombs appeared to be crying (facebook video link supplied per the Ref. article)
when they came out of the back room and said the board should vote again “because
otherwise the entire plan falls apart.”
The board redid the vote, with Coombs’ voice cracking as she said “yes.” The vote
was part of a series taken by the board that, together, resulted in the large-scale
moving of children to different schools based on their parents’ income, effective in
2020."  Ms. Coombs:  I am very sorry that your fellow board members drove you to
tears and I regret even more that it worked and you changed your vote.  Ms. Mallo: 
Your, and your complicit board member's, behavior was totally reprehensible and
brings the phrase "power unchecked" comes to mind.  You have an agenda in mind
and you push it through no matter that the "VAST MAJORITY" at the meeting
opposed it.   The audacity and sheer gall...….
6.  "Residents of the center-left county are in shock that the board passed a busing
plan will move about 5,300 children from their neighborhood schools to balance
poverty, despite almost unanimous opposition in the testimony the board heard,
and the school system’s own data showing no connection between equal
demographics of schools and more equal performance of demographic
groups."  What more proof did you need to tell you YOUR WERE WRONG about this
agenda.
7.  "Mallo spent four minutes scolding the public (see #2 above) on Nov. 7 for noisily
voicing their opposition to the plan and lamenting that the Open Meetings Act gave
them the right to be there."
8.  "“Our community is watching you. We have chosen to support each other as board
members,” Mallo said. “We are not denigrating to each other. We do not raise our
voices to each other.”"  And may I add, Ms. Mallo, that "your community is watching
you!"  Actually, the entire country is now, after this expose', watching YOU!
9.  "Mallo added:  We do not call each other names. We don’t intimidate each
other and we don’t bully each other. Unfortunately, our community has chosen
to do the opposite. You are allowed in this meetings through the Open Meetings
Act. Your behavior must conform with the [civility policy]. It has not done that.
Many of you have had side conversations that cannot continue. … That will
stop today. …
The Open Meetings Act allows you to be here. We expect you to take that
privilege and respect your fellow audience members. From here on out, all
signs must be displayed no higher than your chin. … They will not be waved. If
they are waved, if they are above your chin, if the side conversations continue,
you will be asked to leave. … We are public servants, some of the board
members make $15,000 a year and the ones most recently elected make $16,000
a year. … So on social media, please stop attacking us."  Why was Ms. Mallo
chairing this meeting?  She is neither Chair or Vice-Chair.  If she wasn't, her
dominance of this meeting would certainly lead one to surmise she did.
10.  "Chao Wu, the school board’s only immigrant member, wrote on his website Friday that
he “met and talked to many community members. My notes filled 2 large notebooks. The key
message from the community has been: Don’t move my kids. We love our community school.
As elected BOE members, we are obligated to listen to our constituents.”  There wouldn't be a
PR nightmare for the board if ALL members would have shared Mr. Wu's attitude.
“We made a crisis by placing balancing FARM rate as the highest priority for this
redistricting,” he wrote, calling it a tornado. “Under a tornado, everyone gets hurt,” he said." 



Thank you Mr. Wu....You reached out to the community and fulfilled your obligation.  Now
please proceed on rescinding this "tornado" and reconnect with try to get the community's
confidence back.
Al S.



From: Jennifer Mallo
To: Mark Blom
Subject: attorney client privileged
Date: Saturday, November 23, 2019 7:53:00 PM
Attachments: Memorandum for the Record--Redistricting.docx

Mark,
 

 
 
Thank you,
Jen
 
 
 
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



From: Pretlow II, Larry
To: Sandy Cederbaum; Amy Carpenter; William R. McCormack Jr.; Virginia (Ginny) Thomas; Jonathan Edelson; Lynn-

Steven Engelke; Paul Verchinski; Bag Verma; Rebecca Bryant; Larry Pretlow II; Mavis Ellis; Kirsten Coombs;
Vicky Cutroneo; Christina Delmont-Small; Jennifer Mallo; Sabina Taj; Chao Wu; Student Board Member; Kathleen
V. Hanks; Trudy M. Grantham; EWalsh@howardcountymd.gov; OJones@howardcountymd.gov;
CRigby@howardcountymd.gov; DJung@howardcountymd.gov; DYungmann@howardcountymd.gov;
DIJones@howardcountymd.gov; RRegner@howardcountymd.gov; Rebecca Bryant

Subject: [External] Corrected: [Larry Pretlow II] Statement on Education & Community Advocacy in OM
Date: Saturday, November 23, 2019 12:13:37 PM

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Correction to statement: Do your jobs down there in the George Howard Building and at the
Board of Education OR get out the way!

Call to Action: A Statement on Education & Community Advocacy in Oakland
Mills

(November 23, 2019, Columbia, Maryland) I’ve long called for all hands on deck from all our
local officials to help families where they are. We need intervention, investment, and
resources for vibrant communities to counter, reduce, and end the challenges and
circumstances that have left many families to depend on free and reduced meals, more
specifically in Oakland Mills.

No Oakland Mills is not a poor community. Yet we are a community that has been left without
resources to assist an economic and socially diverse population that needs intervention (for
example our residents whose first language is Spanish or parents who cannot help with
homework)

We have a high concentration of specific demographics (including section 8 voucher holders)
that impact the FARMS rates. To me, this has never justified any attempts to balance poverty;
however, it has been my continued effort to call for lifting these families, keeping them in
their neighborhoods without the disruption of others and ending their FARMS dependencies.

Upgrade the schools, where families who depend on FARMS live, in their vibrant
communities (a holistic learning environment). I believe it was never the Board of Education's
job to address poverty. Also, the BOE was scapegoated by other county elected officials -
whose duties are to reduce poverty and create opportunities.

In OM, we hear a lot about SFES  and that the schools are
segregated by socio-economic status. Let's be honest; that's not what the concern is. Many in
OM (opposed to our community looking like the ghetto) don't want to be associated with a
school that looks like high poverty on paper, so they supported a lousy plan (with faulty data)
to ”balance” poverty and struggle.

Next, there is also the oppressive race-baiting tactics being peddled by particular religious
leaders who believe that black American students cannot unlock their high intellectual
potentials amongst one another in their community classrooms without unjustly busing in
students from wealthier households “to balance the numbers.”

Let's be clear; You don't adjust (balance) poverty -- you reduce it by providing new and



expanded employment opportunities with community programs to assist households in their
productivity to gradually end dependency while increasing their skills to be self-sufficient. We
find the money to do every darn thing else in this county.

The approved redistricting plan uses socio-economic status to address overcrowding - yet it
does nothing for the families that are experiencing economic hardships; while creating new
socio-economic challenges in now newly disrupted communities.

In doing the jobs of others, the Board of Education has created more problems than they are
not tasked with fixing (by statue) or alone cannot fix (without all hands on deck from all levels
of our local government).

Do your jobs down there in the George Howard Building and at the Board of Education OR
get out the way!

Respectfully, 
Larry Pretlow II
2020 Board of Education Candidate
www.LarryPretlow.com

# # #



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

Subject: [External] [Larry Pretlow II] Statement on Education & Community Advocacy in OM
Date: Saturday, November 23, 2019 10:47:26 AM

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Call to Action: A Statement on Education & Community Advocacy

(November 23, 2019, Columbia, Maryland) I’ve long called for all hands on deck from all our
local officials to help families where they are. We need intervention, investment, and
resources for vibrant communities to counter, reduce, and end the challenges and
circumstances that have left many families to depend on free and reduce meals, more
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

Do your jobs down there in the Howard Building and at the Board of Education are get out the
way!

Respectfully, 
Larry Pretlow II
2020 Board of Education Candidate
www.LarryPretlow.com

# # #





























From: Mavis Ellis
To: Kathleen V. Hanks
Subject: Fw: [External] OMCB Complaint 20-15
Date: Friday, November 22, 2019 2:48:46 PM
Attachments: OMA Krupiarz 11.21.19.docx

Please copy for me.  I think I will be sending you a lot of stuff to copy for me and place in a file
for me on my return.

Mavis

From: Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 2:17 PM
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
Cc: Kathleen V. Hanks <Kathleen_Hanks@hcpss.org>; Karalee Turner-Little
<Karalee_TurnerLittle@hcpss.org>
Subject: FW: [External] OMCB Complaint 20-15
 
The official transmittal of the OMA complaint from the Compliance Board.
 

From: OpenGov <opengov@oag.state.md.us> 
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 1:00 PM
To: Mavis Ellis <Mavis_Ellis@hcpss.org>
Cc: barbkrup@verizon.netl; Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>; Michael Martirano
<Michael_Martirano@hcpss.org>; Kathleen V. Hanks <Kathleen_Hanks@hcpss.org>
Subject: [External] OMCB Complaint 20-15
 

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or open
attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

November 22, 2019
 
Mavis Ellis
Chair
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
 
Under §3-206 of the General Provisions Article of the Maryland Code, the Commission is to file
a written response to the open meetings allegations in the complaint within 30 days of its
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
School Superintendent, Michael Martirano, Michael martirano@hcpss.org, 
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
To: Mavis Ellis; Christina Delmont-Small; Jennifer Mallo; Kirsten Coombs; Sabina Taj; Chao Wu; Vicky Cutroneo;

Michael Martirano
Cc: Kathleen V. Hanks; Karalee Turner-Little
Subject: Fwd: [External] Re: Open Meetings Act Complaint
Date: Friday, November 22, 2019 10:15:40 AM
Attachments: OMA Krupiarz 11.21.19.docx

ATT00001.htm

I am forwarding an amended open meetings complaint that we received. Mark

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Barb Krupiarz <barbkrup@verizon.net>
Date: November 22, 2019 at 8:32:32 AM EST
To: "OpenGov@oag.state.md.us" <OpenGov@oag.state.md.us>
Cc: Mark Blom <Mark_Blom@hcpss.org>
Subject: [External] Re: Open Meetings Act Complaint

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not
click links or open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

Please see this amended complaint, which contains more detailed information to
assist the OMCB.

Thank you.

Barb Krupiarz

On 11/21/2019 8:06 PM, Barb Krupiarz wrote:

Please see the attached complaint against the Howard County Board
of Education.

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







From: Luke Rosiak
To: Kirsten Coombs
Subject: [External] Media request
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 10:43:08 PM

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Kirsten,
I'm a reporter with the Daily Caller News Foundation. I am writing a story about how you
changed your vote after being taken into a back room (in apparent violation of the open
meetings act) where you came out crying, and then voted against what residents wanted.

What did they say to you back there? 
Can we talk on Friday (or tonight)?

Here is my previous coverage including data analysis that found no connection whatsoever
between demographics of schools and individual student outcomes:

https://dailycaller.com/2019/11/04/school-busing-achievement-gap-data/

Thanks,
Luke Rosiak



From: Mavis Ellis
To: Mark Blom
Subject: Fwd: [External] violation of the open meetings act
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 9:27:04 PM

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Martin Dimitrov <martin.dimitrov@gmail.com>
Date: November 21, 2019 at 8:13:33 PM EST
To: mavis_ellis@hcpss.org
Subject: [External] violation of the open meetings act

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not
click links or open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

Lawsuit coming up.



From: Martin Dimitrov
To: Jennifer Mallo
Subject: [External] violation of the open meetings act
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 8:12:06 PM

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Lawsuit coming up.





<Notice of Violation and Appeal 112119.pdf>
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From: Shavina Mukesh
To: Kirsten Coombs
Subject: [External] Notice of Violtaions and Notice of Appeals
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:56:06 PM
Attachments: Notice of Violation and Appeal 112119.pdf

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Ms. Coombs:

Please see attached correspondence for your immediate attention. 

Sincerely,  

Mukesh Law Office, LLC
Shavina Kumar Mukesh, Esquire
10630 Little Patuxent Parkway
Suite 301
Columbia, Maryland 21044
Ph: (410) 370-4411

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE. The information contained in this e-mail message and any attachments is
ATTORNEY PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION intended only for the use of the
individual or entity named herein. If you are not the intended recipient or the employee or agent
responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is prohibited. If you have received this communication in
error, please immediately notify Shavina Kumar Mukesh by reply e-mail and delete the original message
and any attachments or by calling (410) 370-4411. Thank you in advance for your cooperation. 



From: Shavina Mukesh
To: Mavis Ellis; kristen coombs-small@hcpss.org; Vicky curtoneo@hcpss.org; Sabina Taj; Christina Delmont-Small;

Chao Wu
Subject: [External] Notice of Violations and Notice of Appeal
Date: Thursday, November 21, 2019 2:50:58 PM
Attachments: Notice of Violation and Appeal 112119.pdf

! CAUTION: This email originated from outside of HCPSS. Do not click links or
open attachments, unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Board of Education Members: 

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




